

CLINICAL EXPERIENCE HANDBOOK

2022-2023

Department of Teacher Education School of Education and Health Sciences University of Dayton Dayton, OH 45469-2966

Table of Contents

Overarching Goals for the Clinical Experience	1
Licensure Code of Professional Conduct for Ohio Educators	_
Professional Behavior	2
Conduct unbecoming	
Definition of Terms	
The Clinical Experience Program	3
General Guidelines/Course Objectives.	4
Professional Content Standards.	
Attendance	
Teacher Professionalism	
Lesson Planning	5
Reflection	
Conferences	
Seminars	
Course Load/Work	
Expectations of the Personnel	5
Interns	5-7
Clinical Educators	8
University Liaisons	9
Principals	10
Intern Evaluation	10-11
Other Related Information	11
Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession Evaluation Forms and Mentoring	
Ohio Assessment for Educators	
Applying for a Teacher License	12
Time Limit for Licenses/Endorsements Applications	
Applying for a Teaching Position	
Policies & Procedures Governing Removal from Clinical Experience	13
Ability to Perform Teacher Performance Responsibilities	14
Reasonable Academic Accommodations	-
Application for a New Field Placement	
Clinical Roles & Required Best Practices	15

Overarching Goals for the Clinical Experience

The School of Education and Health Sciences in conjunction with the University of Dayton's Habits of Inquiry & Reflection document has adopted a school wide theme of "Building Learning Communities through Critical Reflection." The conceptual framework of the School of Education and Health Sciences **embraces diversity** for the promotion of social justice, and engages in **building a community** where the faculty model and interns develop as **scholar practitioners** who engage in **critical reflection**. All four outcomes are addressed in this clinical experience.

The University of Dayton's Teacher Education Programs have adopted a theme that is integrated throughout our entire program of study. The theme of "Teacher as Reflective Decision Maker in a Pluralistic Society" is an appropriate choice, considering that the complex needs of students from many different backgrounds demand that teachers have as much preparation for this challenge as possible.

The School of Education and Health Sciences and the Teacher Education Programs have adopted these themes in accordance with the university's Marianist Mission Statement, which encourages students to take an active role in improving the state of the larger community. This attitude is encouraged when professors and teachers embrace and model qualities of character embodied in the Marianist tradition. These values, found as well in all classrooms, include respect, acceptance, empathy, authenticity, service, compassion, a sense of humor, expectancy of good, concern for the total development of the child and a commitment to be professional minded. The characteristics of a Marianist education; educate for formation in faith, provide an integral quality education, educate in family spirit, educate for service, justice and peace, and educate for adaptation and change are integrated throughout your University of Dayton education, and may also become a part of your educational philosophy as a teacher.

This experience supports the Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession (OSTP), which includes knowledge, skills, and performances addressing: Students, Content, Assessment, Instruction, Learning Environment, Collaboration and Communication, and Professional Responsibility and Growth. The experience also aligns with the department's standards, which are based on the InTASC (Interstate New Teacher Assessment and Support Consortium) Standards, and as such prepares beginning teachers to think about teaching and student learning. This is especially effective when considering and assessing the individual needs of students in a diverse student population.

Licensure Code of Professional Conduct for Ohio Educators

- 1. Educators behave in a professional manner, realizing that one's actions reflect directly on the status and substance of the profession.
- 2. Educators maintain a professional relationship with all the students at all times, both in and out of the classroom.
- 3. Educators accurately report information required by the local board of education or governing board, state education agency, federal agency or state or federal law.
- 4. Educators adhere to federal, state and local laws and statues regarding criminal activity.
- 5. Educators comply with state and federal laws related to maintaining confidential information.
- 6. Educators serve as positive role models and do not use, possess or unlawfully distribute illegal or unauthorized drugs.
- 7. Educators ensure school property, public funds or fees paid by students or the community are used in the best interest of students and not for personal gain

- 8. Educators fulfill all the terms and obligations in their employment contracts.
- 9. Educators use technology in a responsible manner and safeguard the electronic devices and dataentrusted to them.

Professional Behavior

Educators shall behave as professionals, realizing their actions directly reflect on the status and substance of the teaching profession.

An educator serves as a positive role model to both students and adults and is responsible for preserving the dignity and integrity of the teaching profession and for practicing the profession according to the highest ethical standards.

Conduct Unbecoming to the profession includes, but is not limited to, the following actions:

- a) Failing to adhere to the Licensure Code of Professional Conduct for Ohio Educators.
- b) Assisting another in committing an act of conduct unbecoming as described in the Licensure Code of Professional Conduct for Ohio Educators.
- c) Having a continuing physical or mental inability, incapacity or addiction that significantly impacts the educator's ability to carry out his or her professional responsibilities and renders the educator incapable of safely maintaining the care, custody and control of students.
- d) Committing any violation of state or federal laws, statutes or rules, although the conduct may have resulted in a criminal charge, indictment, prosecution or convention. (Except as noted in Principle 6(b), this does not include traffic violations.)
- e) Disparaging a colleague, peer or other school personnel while working in a professional setting (teaching, coaching, supervising or conferencing) on the basis of race or ethnicity, socioeconomic status, gender, national origin, sexual orientation, political or religious affiliation, physical characteristics, age, disability or English language proficiency.
- f) Sexually harassing any student, minor or adult in the school community.
- g) Failing to complete criminal background check as required by the state or federal law.
- h) Violating local, state or federal procedures related to the security of standardized tests, test supplies or resources.
- i) Being disciplined by another state educational entity or other professional licensing board or entity for unethical conduct.
- j) Committing an act of academic dishonesty (for example plagiarism, falsification, fabrication, sabotage or cheating in an academic setting).
- k) Engaging in nepotism as prohibited by local, state or federal law.

Definition of Terms:

<u>Clinical Educators</u> – Licensed practitioners in P-12 schools who provide instruction, supervision, and direction for interns during field-based assignments.

<u>Clinical Experience</u> –The internships that provide interns with an intensive and extensive culminating activity. Interns are immersed in the learning community and are provided opportunities to develop and demonstrate competence in the professional roles for which they are preparing.

<u>Clinical Experience Coordinator</u> – The faculty responsible for coordinating the clinical experience for individual licensure programs.

<u>Intern</u> – An individual under the supervision of a liaison and a clinical educator immersed in their preservice clinical experience.

<u>Liaison</u> – Higher education faculty responsible for instruction, supervision, and assessment of interns during field experience and clinical practice.

The Clinical Experience Program

The clinical experience internship year is a guided experience to prepare individuals for the profession of teaching. It is an opportunity to work under the mentorship of a qualified teacher who has had at least three years of successful teaching experience and/or completed the Resident Educator Program. Initial licensure clinical experience may extend over an entire semester or some portion of a semester, depending upon the prior experience of the intern. Program faculty may extend the clinical experience.

- Interns are required to complete their clinical experience in the Miami Valley
- Interns must complete and have a clear BCI& I and FBI background check before their clinical experience
- Interns will not be permitted to complete their clinical experience in the district where they graduated
- Interns will not be permitted to complete their clinical experience in a district where family members attend, teach or are employed in the school district

Note: Any conviction, including petty misdemeanors, could affect the ability for students to be in the field. There is a process to complete with the Education Field Office to see if students are eligible. The paperwork process could take up to 45 days preventing students to begin the field experience. In some cases, it is not possible to continue. We encourage early self-disclosure to the Education Field Office so next steps can begin to determine eligibility. The overall consequences can include inability to secure a clinical placement, program completion, and/or licensure eligibility.

General Guidelines & Course Objectives for the Clinical Experience

The intern transitions through the developmental stages of observer, participant, co-teacher, and finally, teacher. Thes roles are not discrete. Interns continue to observe throughout the experience and will be participating by the second week of the semester. Each licensure program may share specific guidelines for implementation of the different aspects of the clinical experience.

Observation. Observation is an active and on-going process. The intern must observe with a clear purpose in mind: where materials are kept, classroom management techniques, how individual students respond to the teacher, what motivates students, etc. It is important to record observations.

Observations should extend into classes taught at grade levels or in subject fields other than those of the clinical educator. The intern should become thoroughly acquainted with the students, school, administrative routine, and the school's community. (OSTP 1, 2, 3, 5, 6 & 7)

Participation. The intern is expected to observe and participate actively in the classroom situation in accordance with the clinical educator's schedule. Participation may include helping individual students who are having difficulties; monitoring small groups; assisting with routine tasks; keeping records; preparing teaching materials; checking written work; preparing and using technology; and supervising in the hall, lunchroom, library, and playground. Usually, it is better for the intern to be given responsibility for participating in some activity with the entire group (during a brief period) no later than the end of the first week. (OSTP 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, & 7)

Co Teaching. The intern should consider co-teaching for a period of time with the clinical educator before assuming the principle role of teacher. Co-teaching will assist the intern in making the transition between participation and full responsibility teaching. (OSTP 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 & 7)

Teaching. The intern should assume the principle role of teacher at a time determined jointly by the intern, the clinical educator, and the liaison. It is expected that, through gradual induction, the intern will assume complete responsibility by the end of the assignment. The timeline for assuming the teaching

responsibility should be established no later than the second week of the experience. This responsibility should be assumed gradually, culminating in full responsibility. Each licensure program and individual placement varies; therefore, it is best to check the specifics of this requirement with your licensure coordinator. (OSTP 1, 2, 3 & 4)

Professional Content Standards

During the clinical experience, interns must be assessed utilizing the various professional content standards. Liaisons will share these assessments with clinical educators.

Attendance

Undergraduate and post baccalaureate interns are expected to complete a full semester (15 weeks) as required by the State of Ohio. Interns must make up all absences. **However, you should be aware that performance competence is the final determinant of length of the clinical experience.** Interns must earn a satisfactory evaluation to be recommended for licensure.

Interns are expected to be present in the school each day the assigned school is in session. Attendance is expected except in the case of personal illness or emergencies. The intern must contact the school, clinical educator, and liaison if it is necessary to be absent.

In case of extended (absence from your regularly scheduled placement experience for more than 3 days) and/or unexcused absences (includes any reason for missing your field that has not been mentioned and/or approved by your program coordinator and/or university liaison, and/or no prior arrangements have been made), the intern must notify the Education Field Office. The review team comprised of the Education Field Office personnel and the Senior Year Internship Experience Coordinator will consider three alternatives: 1) extend the clinical experience an appropriate length of time; 2) ask the intern to withdraw and re-enroll in a later term; 3) withdraw the intern from their clinical experience and the program. The decision of the review team will be communicated to the liaison, who will notify the student of the decision.

It is the School of Education and Health Sciences Profession's policy that interns follow the calendar of the assigned school. In the event that school and university holidays do not coincide, interns observe the school of the school system. This includes the school's spring recess. (OSTP 7)

Teacher Professionalism

The intern should acquire an understanding of all of the expectations of teaching. It is important for the intern to learn about record keeping, evaluation, correspondence with families, and other aspects of teaching directly from the clinical educator. Mentoring conversations about the many dimensions of teaching, held after school, should be limited to one or two times per week and arranged at the convenience of both the teacher and the intern. It may be helpful to arrange for one consistent day each week to work after the regular school day. Exceptions are opportunities to attend family conferences, faculty meetings, professional development experiences, athletic or other extra-curricular activities sponsored by the school. (OSTP 6, 7)

Lesson Planning

The intern must become familiar with the students' background knowledge and experiences prior to preparing lessons for the students. It is equally as important to have a thorough understanding of curriculum and the instructional plan of the entire year (past, present and future) before writing lesson and unit plans. It is expected that the intern will prepare daily lesson plans and submit them to the clinical educator prior to teaching for feedback and approval before proceeding with teaching the lessons.

The intern must incorporate learning objectives that are appropriate for all of the students. The plan must also include teaching methods, activities, instructional materials and evaluation strategies that arealigned with the objectives of the lesson. The intern is expected to maintain a file of daily lesson plans and make it available to the liaison when visits to the class are made. Lesson plan formats provided by the university are to be used during observation. (OSTP 1, 2, 3, 4, 5)

Reflection

In keeping with the departmental theme, of "Teacher as a Reflective Decision Maker in a Pluralistic Society," the intern will be required to reflect on lessons taught. The intern may be required to keep a reflective journal. (OSTP 7)

Conferences

Conferences should be held weekly between/among intern and clinical educator in an appropriate setting. These discussions may be about a variety of topics: school philosophy, policies and procedures; professional ethics; planning and preparation; individual needs of students; curriculum; teaching materials; methods; evaluation; the community and parental participation in the school program; continuous self-reflection and evaluation; and cooperative assessment of the internship experience by clinical educator and intern.

The clinical educator and liaison should confer and document intern growth periodically because they share responsibility for mentoring the intern. (OSTP 6)

Clinical Experience Seminars for Interns

Interns are required to attend all seminars, both Education Field Office and program-specific seminars. A schedule of the seminars is available at the beginning of the semester. This schedule should be shared with the clinical educator so they are aware if the intern may need to be excused in order to be prompt for the seminars. (OSTP 6, 7)

Course Load and Work

All interns are to follow their school faculty's contracted hours. If additional course work is required, interns should not carry more than one additional course with their clinical experience. If interns need to work during their clinical experience, work hours must be limited so as not to interfere with a successful clinical experience. The intern should notify the clinical educator and liaison if taking a course during this semester or work needs to be continued. (OSTP 7)

Expectations of the Intern

The intern realizes the opportunity that will be provided learning from the expert mentoring of a veteran teacher. This is a privilege for the intern and should be so regarded. As the principle beneficiary of the efforts of all persons involved in the clinical experience program, the intern is responsible for:

Orientation

- Learning students' names
- Demonstrating various classroom management strategies
- Acquainting the clinical educator with any personal background, health considerations, interests, and ambitions not on the *Personal Data Record* that is provided when the assignment is made
- Completing a medical card and wear it every day on the UD ID lanyard or school ID (except IS interns)

- Observing the time and holiday schedule of the school
- All interns are expected to know and follow the university's and their designated placement's protocol for health emergencies such as Covid-19. This includes things such as masking, testing, quarantine, line of reporting, and vaccination. Interns must stay in communication with their liaison and program coordinator in case of any positive notifications for Covid-19 and the procedures that must be followed for their designated school
- Emotional support dogs/animals are not permitted to be at clinical experiences just like they are not permitted
 in the academic setting. Please refer to the university's "Animals on Campus" policy for further information

Instruction

- Becoming familiar with the long-range and unit plans used by the clinical educator
- Being prepared to take over the class at any time, without warning
- Completing daily lesson plans including various teaching techniques, student groupings, appropriate
 modifications and use of technology. This also includes differentiating in accordance to individual
 student plans and accommodations. All lesson plans must be made available to the clinical educator
 for input and suggestions

Assessment and Evaluation

- Keeping a written reflection and evaluation of one's own work as an intern, striving to effect improvement
- Creating and implementing a capstone experience, as directed by your program requirements.

Collaboration and Professional Development

- Discussing, evaluating and defending various professional issues pertaining to the field of education
- Behaving as a professional in relation to the expectations of the school
- Using good judgment about dress, grooming, and personal habits, being sure to adhere to the school policies
- Holding information about teachers, students and home situations in strict confidence
- Becoming acquainted with the professional and service personnel in the school
- Taking the initiative in seeking help from the clinical educator
- Meeting all responsibilities promptly and effectively, especially notifying the liaison, clinical educator, and/or school if any emergency arises that require absence from school
- Assisting with extra-class activities beyond school hours, on a limited basis, not exceeding twice per week, such as (a) attendance at an athletic event or dramatic production; (b) family conferences; (c) extra-curricular activities
- Being prepared to be in the classroom as the primary teacher (as the clinical educator will leave the classroom periodically for the intern to be the sole teacher in the room).
- Attending conferences with clinical educator and liaison when scheduled
- Showing readiness and initiative to assume increasing responsibility as the semester progresses
- Recognizing that one of the conditions of all clinical experience assignments is that the best interests of the P-12 children must always be the first priority, which includes maintaining confidentiality through FERPA as guaranteed to all K-12 Students
- Observe another teacher's classroom(s) and reflect on his /her/their practice
- Participating in all clinical educator responsibilities during school hours, such as hall, lunchroom, and study hall supervision

- Realizing that an intern is permitted to carry the delegated responsibilities only as long as good ethical
 and professional conduct is maintained, and recognizing that the intern serves under the direction of the
 clinical educator, the principal, and the liaison
- Communicating regularly with clinical educator and university (telephone, email, etc.)

Expectations of the Clinical Educator

The clinical educator is a licensed teacher who accepts responsibility for the daily mentoring of an intern, and is the major influence in making the intern's experience successful. The most effective mentor is one who has a strong sense of efficacy about the influence of teachers on student learning. Good interpersonal skills, broad background knowledge in content and pedagogy, varied instructional techniques, and an emphasis on the importance of planning are characteristics of effective mentors. The clinical educator is responsible for:

Orientation

- Becoming acquainted with the background of the intern. A Personal Data Record/Professional Statement containing pertinent information is provided for this purpose
- Creating a welcoming atmosphere conducive to a harmonious working relationship with the intern
- Orienting the intern to the school. This includes helping the intern become acquainted with administrators, teachers, students, and service personnel. It involves helping the intern become familiar with available instructional facilities, resources, and technological equipment. It includes some understanding of the community and awareness of guidance and special education faculty and facilities, fire drills and other emergency procedures, holidays and special functions

Instructional Support

- Orienting the intern to the work of the classroom. This includes helping the intern understand the curriculum pattern, the long-range plan for the particular group of students, the plan of the current unit, and the grading system. An understanding of the individual needs of the students including some special study of individual student records is vital if the intern is to approach with understanding the task of guiding the learning experience of the group
- Finding ways for the intern to assist in the classroom as soon as possible after arrival. Every intern needs to feel useful and a part of the ongoing program in the classroom. Assisting from time to time even in minor tasks during the initial observation phase and co-teaching in the transition stage are important
- Providing an increasing number of opportunities for the intern to assume more responsibility for the work
 of the different classes, gradually working up to full responsibility
- Giving instructions and guidance to the intern in private conferences, refraining from interrupting while
 the intern works with the students. If the necessity should ever arise for the clinical educator to take
 control, it should be done in such a manner that the intern's pre-professional status is honored
- Being present in the classroom a majority of the time while the intern is teaching to provide an adequate basis for evaluation. Absences are needed, however, to provide the intern with a realistic experience. They should be planned in consideration of the needs and the safety of the students and the demonstrated competence of the intern. The clinical educator always retains full authority and legal responsibility of what happens in the classroom and can delegate responsibilities only temporarily to the intern. Interns are generally not held liable for injury or damages. However, as a precautionary measure, they are covered by the university's liability insurance policy
- Helping guide interns through face to face, hybrid or virtual teaching through health emergencies such as Covid-19

Assessment and Evaluation

- Recording observations using the Ohio Standard for the Teaching Profession based observation form and/or other forms tied to specific licensure programs. These should be shared with the intern in the post observation interviews providing written feedback specific to the intern's teaching acts and interactions
- Informing the intern of his/her academic progress frequently using reflection tools from each respective program during clinical experience
- Supervising and mentoring the intern while documenting their growth over time with sufficient frequency
 to secure a reasonably accurate appraisal of competence as a prospective teacher through formal
 evaluation tools, writing a letter of completion/summary of practice upon completion of the clinical
 experience
- Maintaining confidentiality as required by FERPA for all University of Dayton students

Collaboration and Professional Development

- Attending informational sessions and professional development workshops throughout the term held at the University of Dayton and/or in the schools
- Planning, participating, and implementing professional development experiences, such as informal seminars with interns, building-wide teaching seminars, self-studies with liaison, etc.
- Determining the final grade for the intern in conjunction with the liaison

Expectation Overview

- 2 CPAST evaluations completed,1 at midterm and 1 toward the end of the term
- 1 Letter of Completion for the intern,1 copy given to the intern and 1 copy to the University Liaison
- Informal observations documented
- Regular communication with the University Liaison including any concerns with attendance, performance, professional dress, lesson plans or other items that do not meet the expectations of the Teacher Education preparation program

Expectations of the University Liaison

The liaison assumes these responsibilities for supervising the activities of the intern:

Orientation

Providing an orientation explaining site specific and scheduling expectations of respective programs

Instructional Support

 Supporting the growth of the intern with knowledge of effective teaching methodologies, developmental supervision, research based best practices, and content area expertise

Assessment and Evaluation

- Recording observations using the Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession based observation form is expected during each visit. Liaisons use a tool called Candidate Preservice Assessment of Student Teaching (CPAST). Depending upon the program, the liaison will observe the intern four to five times spaced at regular intervals. Written feedback is provided to the intern in the post-observation interviews
- Collaborating and conferencing with the clinical educator and intern in order to document, inform, and monitor the intern throughout the clinical experience using written feedback or intervention plan if needed

- Collecting and forwarding assessment forms to the University of Dayton's Education Field Office at the end of the term – including evidence of multiple observations, the Mid-Term and Final Assessments, Clinical Educator Letter of Completion/Summary of Practice and Liaison Letter of Completion/Summary of Practice
- Writing a letter of completion/summary of practice for the intern at the end of the placement

Collaboration and Professional Development

- Promoting a thorough understanding of clinical experience through seminars and/or meetings with principals, clinical educators, and interns
- Visiting schools regularly to consult/collaborate with clinical educators while mentoring and documenting the growth of the interns
- Collaborating and conferring with clinical educator to determine the final grade for clinical experience
- Facilitating professional development seminars in collaboration with the clinical educators and/or building faculty for interns and/or clinical-educators. Some seminars may include: professional conversations (based on observations, strategies, etc.), classroom management, differentiated instruction, book study, scripting, grant writing, action research, and/or other topics of interest
- Safeguarding the interns from being assigned the role of substitute teacher. In the event of the absence
 of the clinical educator, a substitute teacher must be in the classroom, even though the intern may teach
 all or part of the day
- Helping guide the intern and clinical educator through expectations of virtual, hybrid or in-person during a health emergency such as Covid-19

Expectations of the Principal

The principal is responsible for:

Collaboration and Professional Development

- Safeguarding the interns from being assigned the role of substitute teacher. In the event of the absence of the clinical educator, a substitute teacher must be in the classroom, even though the intern may teach all or part of the day. After twelve consecutive weeks of student teaching, the student intern, if willing, may consult with their liasion/program coordinator about the possibility of substitute teacher in their assigned classroom
- Safeguarding the intern from involvement in teacher strikes. The University will remove interns from the school in the event of a strike
- Assisting with problem situations upon request of the liaison, clinical educator, or intern
- Maintaining the same protocols for interns as clinical educators through any type of health emergency including Covid-19

Intern Evaluation Grading System

During the experience, the clinical educator and liaison will convey to the intern a grade indicative of his/her academic standing to date. The clinical educator, in collaboration with the liaison, will be responsible for the final grade as it relates to the Ohio Standards criteria and/or the programmatic, licensure standards.

The evaluation of the work of the intern is a collective effort involving the intern, the clinical educator, the liaison, and at times, the building principal. Self-reflection continually conducted by the intern is one of the

most important elements of evaluation. During the experience, the clinical educator and liaison will convey to the intern a grade indicative of his/her academic standing to date. It is expected that frequent conferences between the clinical educator and the liaison will result in reasonable agreement concerning the academic grade. The clinical educator and liaison will be responsible for the final grade.

Undergraduate letter grade will be determined in accordance with definitions in the following paragraphs. A, A-, B+, B, B-, C+, C, C-, D, and F are grade options as well.

The post baccalaureate letter grade scale: A, A-, B+, B, B-, C, and F.

- A This intern possesses personal and professional qualities associated with outstanding beginning teaching; knowledge of subject matter is characterized by both breadth and depth; acquaintance with pedagogical strategies and techniques are evident.
- B This intern has a reasonable command of subject matter and teaching techniques and possesses the personal qualities associated with acceptable performance as a beginning teacher, but still evidences need for growth in his/her command of subject matter or use of instructional techniques.
- C This intern's knowledge of subject matter and/or teaching techniques is significantly weak in some specific way.
- D This intern is able to finish the assignment, but has a major subject matter or pedagogical weakness. (The grade of D is not used for graduate students.) This intern will not be recommended for licensure.
- F This intern's performance is inadequate and/or unprofessional. This intern will not be recommended for licensure.

Other Related Information

Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession Evaluation Forms and Mentoring

Clinical educators are to use the Candidate Preservice Assessment of Student Teaching Tool (CPAST) for OSTP framework observation/assessment form supplied by the Education Field Office. Forms are available from the liaison or the university's Education Field Office website.

Further Information: https://udayton.edu/education/departments and programs/edt/ed field office.php

Ohio Assessment for Educators

Interns in the different programs are expected to pass two to three Ohio Assessment for Educators exams depending on their licensure and concentration. If warranted, some interns may choose to take the Assessment of Professional Knowledge test.

Further information: http://education.ohio.gov

Applying for a Teaching License

All interns leading to Ohio Licensure must verify they are in "good moral character" and interns must be fingerprintedforbackgroundcheckpurposes. Electronic fingerprinting is available in the Office of Public Safety.

The submission and approval for first-time license applications must be completed online. Each applicant for licensure will need a Safe Access for Educators (SAFE) account with the Ohio Department of Education found in the Ohio Department of Education website. Each applicant must create a SAFE account. Once the SAFE account is validated, you may submit an application for an initial license. The system accepts payment by credit card. The SAFE account must be completed before the clinical experience begins.

Requirements for the various types and grade of licensure are described in the bulletin published by the Ohio State Department of Education entitled "Laws and Regulations Governing Licensure." This bulletin may be examined in the School of Education and Health Sciences Dean's office. Information concerning out-of-state requirements for licensure may be obtained from the applicable state education department or board of education websites.

Time Limit for Licenses/Endorsements Applications

Students in the teacher education licensure programs must apply for the State of Ohio and out of state licensure within 12 months of their program completion.

This means that students who apply after the 12-month policy will have to appeal to the Licensure Officer and may have to take additional coursework.

Applying for a Teaching Position

The University of Dayton's Career Services, http://careers.udayton.edu, offers the *Hire a Flyer Network* to assist undergraduates and graduate interns in securing employment.

Policies and Procedures Governing Relocation or Removal from Clinical Experience

The faculty at the University of Dayton and our clinical educators in our school partnership sites are committed to the success of every teacher licensure candidate. We work closely with every candidate to ensure a positive experience in the P-12 school that supports the goals of the candidate's specific program. However, circumstances may arise in which an intern may be removed from the school setting and, possibly, the clinical experience.

Candidate-Initiated Removal

If a teacher candidate chooses to withdraw from the internship for medical reasons or other acceptable major causes, the candidate must notify their university liaison and the Education Field Office. The Coordinator of the Education Field Office will cancel the school assignment with school district officials. Withdrawal policies as stated in the Undergraduate and/or Graduate Catalogs will apply. Candidates are ultimately responsible for ensuring that the appropriate paperwork has been filed and approved for withdrawal from the coursework.

Relocation

In cases of extenuating circumstances in which there is a logistical problem or supervision issue within the original setting (e.g.,clinical educator becomes unable to continue, there is a traumatic event influencing thesetting), a candidate may be relocated under another placement. Such a change requires approval of the Program Coordinator who completes the Change in Placement Request Form. This form must then be turned in to be signed by the Department Chair and then turned in to the Education Field Office Coordinator.

School and/or University of Dayton Initiated Removal from Final Clinical Experience

If a review of a candidate's performance in the clinical experience reveals that he/she is not making satisfactory progress toward meeting program goals, a formal Intervention Plan will be written that describes:

- The area of concern
- Goals to be accomplished by specified dates;
- Actions necessary to meet stated goals
- Criteria to determine success; and
- Support that will be provided by the Liaison, Clinical Educator, and/or others to assist in meeting stated goals, evaluate progress, and provide feedback on progress

The Intervention Plan will be written by the clinical educator and university liaison and must be shared with the Education Field Office. Suggestions and deadlines for improvement are made in writing and signed by all parties. The individuals responsible for the implementation will meet with the licensure candidate to support the candidate's understanding and implementation of stated goals through a formal monitoring of progress. If the candidate does not meet the requirements of the Intervention Plan by the specified dates, he/she, at the discretion of the appropriate personnel, can be removed from the clinical placement. The clinical educator and the liaison will provide detailed documentation of the reason(s) for recommendation of removal. Copies of the written documented evidence will be provided to the Licensure Program Coordinator and the Education Field Office Coordinator. Based on the information presented, the candidate's success in meeting the identified goals for improvement will be assessed. At that time, the Licensure Program Coordinator will make a recommendation for either:

- -Relocation of the student and continuation of the clinical experience; or
- -Withdrawal from the clinical course without relocation; Program Coordinator determines replacement coursework for degree completion

A candidate who does not report to his/her assigned school setting or does not respond to contact from appropriate school and/or university personnel can be immediately removed from the placement without requirement of a formal Intervention Plan. A decision to not to relocate a candidate in a subsequent school placement can be appealed to the Chair of Teacher Education.

Appeal Process

Students can appeal decisions made by the department. Students must write up their concerns, presentthem to their liaison, who will in turn discuss with the Program Coordinator. Lastly, the Chair of the department will be consulted.

Emergency Removal

A teacher candidate may be removed from the school site for violations of professional conduct and/or when there is reasonable cause to believe that the candidate is an immediate threat to the safety, health, or welfare of himself or herself, P-12 students, other UD candidates, and/or school – or university-based personnel and/or when the candidate's continued presence may be disruptive to the community or to the mission of the school or the university's teacher education program. Alleged infractions will be brought to the immediate attention of the Coordinator of the Education Field Office or university faculty/liaisons, who will submit a written report of the allegations no later than three working days following the initial contact with university personnel.

Ability to Perform Teacher Performance Responsibilities

Teacher candidates must attest to the fact that they are able to carry out teacher performance as described in the document above and with or without reasonable accommodations responsibilities and duties as the only adult in the classroom with student.

Please Note:

Reasonable Accommodations

To request accommodations due to a disability; please contact the Office of Learning Resources in the Roesch Library 033, (937)-229-2066. If you have An Accommodation letter from the Office of Learning Resources indicating that you have a disability or a medical condition, which requires accommodation, please present it to the university faculty so we can discuss the accommodation you might need in class.

The University of Dayton does not discriminate on the basis of age, race, color, creed, national or ethnic origin, or sex, not against otherwise qualified handicapped students in its admissions policy and academicstandards, nor in the granting of scholarships, loans, and other financial aid, nor in the planning and administration of its academic, athletic, and other programs, services and activities.

Application for a New Field Placement

The placement of a clinical experience intern is a serious commitment for the intern, the clinical educator and the university. If for any reason the intern chooses not to honor and/or complete his/her commitment in the original academic term, but would like to complete it in the future, the following guidelines will be followed:

- -The intern must **resubmit** his/her clinical experience application in the semester prior to the expected internship in order to be considered for a new placement.
- -The intern must submit a letter **detailing an action plan** explaining the steps he/she will complete, in order to ensure his/her success in the new placement.

Each application will be considered on a case-by-case basis by an EDT faculty committee. Any student intern that self-selects out of their initial placement is not guaranteed that his/her new application will be accepted, or that it is possible to secure another placement.

I have read and understand the preceding statement concerning the policies and procedures governing relocation and removal from the clinical experience.

Teacher Licensure Candidate Printed Name	Date	
Teacher Licensure Candidate Signature Name	Date _	
Teacher Licensure Candidate Signature Name _	Date _	

Clinical Roles & Required Best Practices for the University of Dayton's Teacher Education Program

Purpose: This chart provides rationale for the work as outlined in the Clinical Experience Handbook

Frequency of Contact	Required Documentation	Observation of Teaching	
Clinical educators Provide daily modeling and mentoring to the candidate Maintain ongoing communication with University Liaison Three-way Conference at midterm and final Some programs do a weekly log	Clinical educator, candidate, and university liaison complete the following forms: - CPAST Pedagogical midterm form - CPAST Dispositions midterm form - Additional program-specific forms - CPAST Pedagogical summative form - CPAST Disposition summative form	Clinical educator will informally observe and discuss progress with thecandidate on an ongoing basis with formative feedback. Clinical educator completes a minimum of three (3) formal observations with written feedback.	
University liaison Maintains ongoing communication with candidate and clinical educator on weekly basis University liaison Some programs complete weekly contact log	University liaison documents all observations of the Ohio Standards for the Teaching Profession and additional program specific forms. Clinical educator, candidate, and university liaisoncomplete the following forms: University liaison records consensus data on: - CPAST Pedagogical midterm form - CPAST Dispositions midterm form - Additional program-specific forms - CPAST Pedagogical summative form - CPAST Disposition summative form	University liaison will informally observe and discuss progress with thecandidate with feedback. University liaison completes a minimum of two (2) formal observations with written feedback.	
Clinical Educator & Liaison provide Letters of Completion	Clinical Educator and Liaison each write letters of completion or summary of practice. Letters are submitted to Education Field Office for archival as narrative documentation of the clinical experience.	Each written evaluation summary provides evidence of practice with a common understanding of the candidate's current practice and areas of future continued growth.	
Clinical Educator & Liaison Final Evaluation	Intern evaluation conveyed through UD grading system.	Clinical Educator and Liaison collaborate on final evaluation through observations and evidence of practice.	